


RFP 527-09-000005  Page 2 of 20 
Questions and Answers 
 
 
 
The Solicitation is therefore amended as follows:  
 
1.  SF 33, make the following changes: 
 a.  Item 9:  Delete “March 27, 2009 – 09:00 am” and replace it with “March 30, 2009 – 
11:00 am.” 

b.  Item 12:  Replace “90 days” with “120 days.” 
 
2. Section B – SERVICES AND COSTS, delete Item B.4. – COST SCHEDULE, and replace it 
with the following: 
 
Proposed costs must support the Program Areas listed below. 
 
  Base 

Year 
Option 
Year-1

Option 
Year-2 

Total 

CLIN 
1 

 

Sales and jobs increased and outside 
resources leveraged. 

    

 Fee     

CLIN 
2 

Trade and investment climate within 
selected economic corridors improved. 

    

 Fee     

CLIN 
3 

Performance Monitoring and Evaluation 
implemented. 

    

 Fee     
 
 
3.   Section C – DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/ WORK STATEMENT:    

 
(a) Delete Items C.1.3 and C.1.4.  There is no replacement. 

 
(b) Page C 14, Result 4:  Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Plan developed and implemented, 

delete in its entirety and replace with the following: 
 
 

“Result 4:  Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Plan developed and implemented. 
 

Indicator 4.1 – Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Plan for all Results and indicators 
developed and implemented with approval from USAID.   
At a Minimum: 
 
4.1.1 – Cost-effective methodologies to quantifiably measure the poverty reduction impacts 
of the program at the Economic Corridor level (including the impact on the Gross Domestic 
Product of the targeted regions), and at the micro-enterprise level established. [1]    
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4.1.2 – Data on the poverty reduction impact of the program at the Economic Corridor level 
reported at outset (baseline) and three months prior to the end of the contract. 
 
4.1.3 – Data on the poverty reduction focus of the program, using USAID’s Poverty 
Assessment Tools, collected and reported annually.    
 
4.1.4 – Data on sustainable, cohort-based, annual sales and jobs generated, collected and 
reported quarterly.   
 
4.1.5 – Resources leveraged from public, private and civil society entities as a result of 
USAID assistance monitored, tracked, and reported quarterly.”  
 

 
4.   Section F – DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE:   
 

(a)  Item F.5.1 - Start-up and Annual Work Plans, first paragraph:  Delete ”taken into 
account that the school year in Peru runs from March to December…” 
 
(b)  Item F.5.9 Performance Management Plan, first bullet point, delete last sentence 
and replace with:  “This draft PMP will be finalized with USAID within 90 days from the 
award date.” 

 
5.  Section I – CONTRACT CLAUSES: 
 

(a) Add:  FAR 52.237-8 Restriction of Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals, 
(b)  Add:  FAR 52.537-9 Waiver to Limitation on Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals 

 
6.  Section J - LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:  Include the following: 
 

  IEE 
  MOU 

 
7.  Section L – INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS: 
 

(a) Item L.7.A. Result 4 first paragraph.  Delete third sentence “Experimental designs, in 
which units are randomly assigned to treatment and control groups, are the gold 
standard for rigorous monitoring and evaluation.”  Replace with “Quasi-experimental 
design, when properly conceived and implemented, is a respected methodology for 
program evaluation and analysis.” 

 
(b) Item L.7.B. B.2. Management Plan, first paragraph, last sentence:  Delete “salary 

structure.” 
 

(c) Item L.7.C Organizational Capability, third paragraph, delete part (d) “projected 
expenditures by month.” 

 
8.   Section M – EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD: 
 

(a)  Item M.2.B, Subfactor B-2:  Under the first bullet point, delete “(including salary 
structure).” 

 
(b)  Item M.2.C, delete first bullet point and replace with “The extent to which the Draft First 

Year Work Plan includes all 9 elements requested and is realistic, logical and clear.  This 
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will be assessed through (a) steps and target dates to mobilize key personnel and 
initiate technical assistance; (b) specific steps to achieve the proposed results in year 1; 
(c) procedures to monitor implementation activities under the control of the contractor; 
and (e) identification of major issues to be addressed.” 

 
 
9.  Include the following “Questions and Answers” document (see Attachment 1). 
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ATTACHMENT ONE 

 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
  
This document includes all Questions and Answers (Q&As) determined to be of general interest.  
Questions with similar subjects have been grouped together. 

 
RFP No. 527-09-000005  

 
New Private Sector Competitiveness and 

Poverty Reduction and Alleviation Activity  
 
 

Clarification Questions for USAID/Peru 
 
 
TECHNICALPROPOSAL-RELATED QUESTIONS 
 
Q1: Attachment 7, definition 16 (USAID definition of Alliances/ Public-Private Partnerships 
PPPs) states that “While funds from other donors and multilateral banks can be leveraged, 
these funds cannot count towards the target to meet Result 3.”  Result 3 on page C-10 is listed 
as “Methodologies developed and implemented to assist public, private and civil society entities 
to measurably improve the trade and investment climate within selected economic corridors in 
the Sierra and possibly the Selva.”  Is definition 16 referring to the target in Result 2, “Resources 
leveraged from public, private and civil society entities as a result of USAID assistance exceed 
US$ 15 million?”   
 
A1:  YES 
 
Q2:  Please clarify if “sales of goods and services of participating MSMEs’ that are 
produced/provided in a way that enhances biodiversity increased by US$3 million over baseline 
levels for the life of the Contract” (p. C-11, Indicator 1.3.2) are included in the Result 1 target of 
“Sales of goods and services produced by MSMEs receiving USAID assistance increased by 
US$90 million, which generate 27,000 new full-time equivalent jobs,” as listed on page C-10. 
 
Q2b:  Section C-11 1.1.5  states that “ Sales (domestic and international markets) of goods and 
services of participating MSMEs increased by US$90 million over baseline levels for the life of 
the Contract as a result of MSMEs adopting improved business practices and new technologies 
and adding value and/or diversifying into higher–value products/services (see Definitions)”  and 
1.3.2 states that “Sales of goods and services of participating MSMEs that are 
produced/provided in way that enhances biodiversity increased by US$3 million over baseline 
levels for the life of the Contract.”  It is unclear if the referenced $3 million are included in the 
total sales of $90 million. 
 
 
A2:   YES 
 
Q3:  Section L. B.1 – Key Personnel of the RFP states the requirements for key personnel 
positions under the project and lists, inter alia, the educational requirements of the proposed 
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Chief of Party as follows: “Education Requirements: A master’s degree (or foreign equivalent) 
required in political science, international relations, economics, geography, public/business 
administration, other social sciences, or similar relevant area.” Please clarify whether an 
additional 5 years of directly relevant work experience or a licentura in lieu of an advanced 
degree as currently indicated, would be acceptable or whether such a candidate would be 
considered non-responsive to the requirement outlined in Section L. B.1?   
 
A3:  NO.  Master’s degree is a minimum requirement 
 
Q4:  Must “Result 1: Sales of goods and services produced by MSMEs receiving USAID 
assistance increased by US$ 90 million, which generate 27,000 new full-time equivalent jobs” 
and “Result 2: Resources leveraged from public, private and civil society entities as a result of 
USAID assistance exceed US$ 15 million” be achieved during the 3 year base period? 
 
A4:  NO 
 
Q5:  Section L (page L-9) states “Proposals are limited to 40 pages.  Any pages OVER 40 
PAGES WILL NOT BE EVALUATED.  Items such as graphs, charts, cover pages, dividers, 
table of contents, and attachments (i.e. key personnel resumes, table summarizing 
qualifications of proposed personnel, past performance summary table, and past performance 
report forms) are not included in the 40 page limitation.  Is this list comprehensive or may 
offerors include other technical charts, tables or graphs as attachments?  If items, such as 
tables summarizing qualifications of proposed personnel and an organizational chart are 
included in the technical narrative, will they be counted against the page limit?    
 
A5:  The Technical Proposal will be a major consideration in the award of this contract.  The 
proposal should be complete and respond to the directions under Section L.   Graphs, charts, 
cover pages, dividers, table of contents, and attachments (i.e., key personnel resumes, tables 
summarizing qualifications or proposed personnel, past performance summary table, and past 
performance reports) are not included in the 40 page limitation.   
 
 
Q6:  Please indicate if the “New Private Sector Competitiveness and Poverty Reduction and 
Alleviation Activity” has a common name or an acceptable acronym, and if so, what it is 
 
A6.  No common name or acronym.  A name for the program will be assigned after the award of 
the contract.   

 
Q7: The RFP states that “USAID plans to award a Cost Plus Fixed-Fee-type contract with a total 
estimated cost between $13 and $15 million over a base period of 36 months plus two (2) one-
year options.”    Is the proposed project $13-15 Million for 36 months or for 60 months?  
 
Q7a:  Per page C-11 1.1.5 “Sales (domestic and international markets) of goods and services of 
participating MSMEs increased by US$90 million over baseline levels for the life of the Contract 
as a result of MSMEs adopting improved business practices and new technologies and adding 
value and/or diversifying into higher–value products/services (see Definitions)” please clarify if 
this is 36 or 60 months. 
 
A7 and 7a:  60 months 

 
Q8: Per section B-1 “Purpose” of the RFP “The proposed activity will address Program 
Elements found under “Program Area 4.2: Trade and Investment”, “Program Area 4.6: Private 
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Sector Competitiveness”, and “Program Area 4.8 Environment” and will contribute directly to the 
USAID/Peru Strategic Objective of “Increased economic opportunities for the poor in selected 
economic corridors.”.  

 
Please confirm that these program areas are taken from the “Economic Growth” Program 
Objective for Peru, and not the “Investing in People” Program Objective as stated on page C-2; 
Section C.1.3 “Work performed under this contract will help achieve USAID’s Investing in 
People Objective under the U.S. Foreign Assistance Framework (FAF)”? 
 
Q8a:  Section C.1.3 and section C.1.4 do not seem to relate to the rest of the RFP.  Please 
advise if this section was included in error or if is in fact meant to be a component of this 
contract (RFP #527-09-000005) and if offeror’s approach and cost need to address stated 
outcomes to be accomplished and six strategic objectives relating to “Improve Basic Education 
Quality in Disadvantaged Areas” program? 
 
Q8b:  On page C-2 Section C.1.3 states that “work performed under this contract will help 
achieve USAID’s Investing in People Objective.” How much of the funds are coming from the 
Investing in People’s Objective?  How much money, therefore, needs to be put towards meeting 
the requirements and deliverables of the Education Program Area? 
 
Q8c  The end of the paragraph of C.1.3 states that “requirements and deliverables are outlined 
in section C.5 below.”  However, section C.5 is missing.  What are the requirements and 
deliverables required by USAID in order for the Offeror to meet the requirements of the 
Education Program Area? 
 
Q8d  On page C-2 in Section C.1.3 there is no mention of achieving USAID’s Economic Growth 
Objective.  Should the Economic Growth Objective be included?  
 
Q8e  On page C-2 section C.1.4. Relationship with GOP Plans and Priorities, it is stated that  
“Activities under this contract will support the GOP’s plans and priorities in basic education.”  
Are there GOP plans related to the four results laid out on page c-10 in section C.3.  Statement 
of Work that might be worth mentioning in section C.1.4? 
 
A8-8e:  Sections C.1.3 and C.1.4 are deleted under this amendment.  These Program Areas are 
taken from the “Economic Growth Program Area.”  Sections C.1.3 and C.1.4 are deleted under 
this amendment. 
 
Q9:  The definition of an Economic Corridor contains at least one medium sized city.  Please 
provide us a list or criteria for what USAID considers “medium sized”.  Economic Corridors also 
“contain districts with poverty rates above 50%”.  Is poverty rate information available per 
district?  If so, please provide us that information.   
 
A9:  A medium sized city is a department capital or a city with at least 30,000 inhabitants. 
 
The National Statistics Institute (INEI) publishes a comprehensive database of poverty at the 
regional and district level: Mapa de Pobreza Provincial y Distrital 2007. CDs are available from 
INEI for 30 soles. You may order the CDs at ventas@inei.gob.pe.     
 
Q10: Please provide us with the USAID Mission Strategic Objective, Results Framework, and 
PMP (for the SO) for which this activity falls. 
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A10: USAID no longer uses strategic objectives or results frameworks. USAID now operates 
under The Framework for U.S. Foreign Assistance.  Please visit http://www.state.gov/f/ to obtain 
more detail on standardized program structures and definitions and standard indicators.   
 
The proposed activity will address Program Elements found under “Program Area 4.2: Trade 
and Investment”, “Program Area 4.6: Private Sector Competitiveness”, and “Program Area 4.8 
Environment” and will contribute directly to the USAID/Peru Strategic Objective of “Increased 
economic opportunities for the poor in selected economic corridors.”   
 
In addition, USAID/Peru has identified “Sustainable income opportunities for lower-income 
groups” as the Mission’s overarching Assistance Objective for economic growth.  The Mission 
selected this objective based on the Government of Peru’s clear commitment to increase trade 
and investment to stimulate economic growth and spread the benefits of this growth broadly 
within the country. 
 
USAID wishes to emphasize to offerors that while the Framework for Foreign Assistance serves 
as a general guide to strategic direction, offerors’ Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Plans 
should respond primarily to the results and indicators in section C of this RFP.   
 
 
Q11:  The RFP provides a prescriptive list of results and indicators (C-3).  However, not all of 
the indicators demonstrated in the RFP are indicators as detailed in ADS 203 (some are 
deliverable, milestones, etc).  Please provide guidance on how USAID envision the 
representation of the PMP.  
 
A11: In Section C.3, Indicators should be treated as sub-results.   
 
Q12:  The link provided http://www.state.gov/f/releases/factsheets2006/79645.htm is an error; 
Please provide the correct path to this document.  
 
A12:  This is not needed for purposes of this program and is not in the RFP.   
 
Q13:  Section C.2. Background on page C-4 states “the country faces considerable challenges 
with 39.3% of Peruvians still living in poverty and 13.7% in extreme poverty” please provide 
definition of poverty versus extreme poverty for this context. 
 
A13:  Poverty is defined as persons who live in homes where monthly expenditures are below 
amounts calculated by INEI, the National Statistics Institute.  The rate varies from 147 nuevo 
soles in rural jungle areas to 260 nuevo soles in Lima.  
 
Extreme Poverty is defined as persons who live in homes where monthly expenditures are 
below amounts calculated by INEI, the National Statistics Institute.  The rate varies from 95 
nuevo soles in rural jungle areas to 122 nuevo soles in Lima.  
 
The website www.inei.gob.pe has a link for Encuesta Nacional de Hogares which has a 
technical report that details the methodology for calculating poverty and extreme poverty.  
 
Q14:  Per page C-10  “Amount of increase in sales of goods and services produced by assisted 
MSMEs in the targeted regions broken down by type of goods and services, by women and men 
owned enterprises, and by market (domestic, regional and international). Baseline Zero” . 
However on page C-11 Indicator 1.1.4 “Participating MSMEs identified and sales baseline 
established”.  Please clarify if a baseline is required for this activity.  
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A14:  Sales baseline shall be established for each MSME as they join the program.  From this 
baseline, increased sales above and beyond this prior year’s sales target will count towards 
achieving the result.   
 
Q15:  Page C-11 1.2.1 states “1.2.1 – Participating MSMEs identified and employment baseline 
established” however on page C-10 the RFP says the baseline is zero?  Please clarify. 
 
A16:  Same as above for the employment baseline.   
   
 
Q17: Also, page C-11 1.1.5 “The average incremental annual sales from the annual cohort of 
participating MSMEs shall be at least equal to or greater than the sales from the previous year 
through the life of the program” please clarify if USAID wishes to disaggregate MSMEs per an 
interval (fiscal year, calendar year, or contract signing).   Also please clarify if the MSMEs equal 
to or greater sales are grouped and disaggregated annually OR if all annual (previous) cohorts 
are summative.  Will MSMEs cohorts be counted toward with replacement (sales figures from 
MSMEs combined) or without replacement (each annual cohort much do equal to better than 
the same cohort, no new MSMEs from the previous year) in regards to annual sales? 
 
A17: Sales are measured for the U.S. government fiscal year (October 1 to September 30). 
 
 
Q18:  Given the economic crisis and its short and long term effects; how will inflation (especially 
local currency slipping compared to the USD in which measure our success) be calculated 
when assessing and measuring costs and consequently jobs?   
 
A18:  Sales will be measured in soles or dollars unadjusted for inflation. For reporting purposes, 
soles will be converted to dollars. The contractor may do currency conversion calculations 
monthly or quarterly.  Inflation rates and currency exchange fluctuations may be reported as 
footnotes.  

 
Q19: Language under Result #2, Page L-11 states that “In preparing its technical approach, the 
Offeror may discuss methodologies and approaches with potential resource partners, but the 
Offeror shall not request letter(s) of commitment from (a) Resource Partners until the contract 
has been awarded.”  However, footnote #4 on page C-13 states that “Offerors should not 
approach Resource Partners or request any letter of commitment until the project has been 
awarded.”  While both these make clear that letters of commitment should not be requested, we 
request USAID to clarify if we can discuss methodologies and approaches with potential 
resource partners.  Is it or is it not acceptable to meet with these organizations? 
 
A19:  Language under Result #2, Page L-11 states that “In preparing its technical approach, the 
Offeror may discuss methodologies and approaches with potential resource partners, but the 
Offeror shall not request letter(s) of commitment from (a) Resource Partners until the contract 
has been awarded.”  However, footnote #4 on page C-13 states that “Offerors should not 
approach Resource Partners or request any letter of commitment until the project has been 
awarded.”  While both these make clear that letters of commitment should not be requested, we 
request USAID to clarify if we can discuss methodologies and approaches with potential 
resource partners.  Is it or is it not acceptable to meet with these organizations? 
 
There are two types of partners.  The first types of partners are what are commonly referred to 
as subcontractors and subgrantees.  These partners are paid for their services, and the Offeror 
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is free to engage in commitments with these partners.  The second types of partners are 
“Resource Partners.”  Resource Partners bring their own resources to match USAID resources. 
These are the type of partners with which USAID signs “Alliances.”  Offerors may discuss 
methodologies and approaches with potential Resource Partners, and it is acceptable to meet 
with Resource Partners.  USAID requests that Offerors only discuss approaches with Resource 
Partners and refrain from soliciting letters of commitment.  USAID will sign MOUs with Resource 
Partners after the contract is awarded.  
 
Q20:  Section F.5.9 of RFP request for a draft of PMP, along with baseline data when available, 
be presented with the contractor’s technical proposal.  Please confirm that PMP draft plan is to 
be annexed and not in body of technical proposal counting towards the 40 page limit. 
 
A20:  The PMP may be submitted as an Annex. 
 
Q21:  Per section C-14, 4.1.1 of the RFP regarding measuring impacts on poverty reduction, 
please verify if the contractor must use the “client assessment survey” for Peru as detailed at 
http://www.povertytools.org/tools.html.  May the contractor use other poverty measurement tools 
to assess the household (MSME) level impact this project has on poverty? 
 
A21:  The contractor must use the “client assessment survey” for Peru as detailed at 
http://www.povertytools.org/tools.html.    The contractor may also use other poverty 
measurement tools. 
 
Q21:  In section F.5.1 Start-up and Annual Work Plans, it states that it should be “taken into 
account that the school year in Peru runs from March to December.”  Please explain how this is 
relevant to this contract and its objectives. 
 
A21:  “taken into account that the school year in Peru runs from March to December” is deleted 
from the RFP. 
 
Q22:  In the RFP there are several references to a Result 5 in Section C (i.e. page C-3, first 
paragraph…. “and (5) policy dialogue and civil society participation enhanced.  Requirements 
and deliverables are outlined in section C.5 below”, page F-5, section F.5.9 Performance and 
Management Plan….” The PMP shall include indicators with targets (including baseline and 
control data) in order to draw valid inferences about the impact of USAID activities.  (Also see 
Result 5 in Section C).  Please confirm that there is no Result 5. 
 
A22:  Sections C.1.3 and C.1.4 are deleted under this amendment.  There are four results under 
this RFP. 
 
Q23:  Section H.19, page HG-10; Please confirm that offeror is expected to submit a completed 
Environmental Mitigation and Monitoring Plan (EMMP) or a Project Mitigation and Monitoring 
(M&M)  plan as part of the Technical Proposal response (as an annex) or is the offeror to plan 
on providing one once the award is made? 
 
A23:  Please submit as an annex. 

 
Q24a: Page B-2, Section B.4, and Section L.8(b) specify a CLIN structure for the budget.  
However, allocation of costs among the CLINs will be difficult.  For example, proposed CLINs 1 
and relate to Result 1 and will be achieved through the same set of activities.  As a 
consequence, determining how much to budget against each CLIN is not straight forward.  
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Given the nature of the activities to be implemented under the project, would USAID consider no 
CLINs for the budget?   
 
Q24b Per section B.4; the RFP provides three CLINS; however the results on page C-10, 
section C.3 Statement of work, combines two of the CLINS (CLIN 1 &2) into one result.  Please 
clarify if sales and jobs should be separate results or combined results.  If combined, please 
advise if the CLIN 1 and 2 should also be combined.  Can the contractor contribute to two 
different CLINS to meet one result?  
 
Q24c:  The RFP’s section B.4 currently requires the submission of a budget in 3 CLIN’s. We 
believe that new jobs are created by increasing sales of goods and services. We therefore 
believe CLINs 1 and 2 should be combined into 1 CLIN. This would require offeror’s to submit a 
budget with 2 CLIN’s, the first being “increasing sales of goods and services by MSME’s 
receiving USAID assistance by $90 million and generating 27,000 new jobs”. The second CLIN 
would then be “Resources leveraged from public, private and civil society entities as a result of 
USAID assistance exceeding $15 million” This is also evident in the technical evaluation criteria 
(Section M.2A) which lists the 2 CLIN’s under one Result 1 (The extent to which methodologies 
will assist MSMEs receiving USAID support to increase sales of goods and services produced 
by US $90 million and generate 27,000 new full-time equivalent jobs). Please confirm if it is 
acceptable to USAID/Peru to submit the budget with 2 CLINS rather than 3. 
 
Q24d:  If there are to be CLINs, it is our understanding that the development results proposed 
using the DFB methodology should correspond to the four project results included in page C-10 
of the RFP.  Since one of the purposes of the development-focused budgeting is to also 
facilitate during implementation the review of the development results achieved in comparison 
with overall spending for that result, having CLINs that match the development results will 
facilitate reporting expenditures per result. Currently the CLINs requested in section B of the 
RFP are not the same as the 4 project results on page C-10 (Result 1 is the same as CLINS 1 
&2, Result 2 is the same as CLIN3, and Results 3 and 4 are not included). Therefore, please 
clarify if offerors can propose CLINs that match the four development results included in page 
C-10.  
 
Q24e:  In Section L.8 (page 20) of the RFP, it states: “DFB involves summarizing cost data to 
corresponding development results/outcomes as set forth in the Mission’s approved Operational 
Plan.  Cost data must be summarized in both the format listed above and DFB categories by the 
corresponding program elements.  If an input serves multiple development results and program 
elements, the applicant must allocate the input across the corresponding results and provide a 
rationale in the budget narrative for the method used for each allocated input.”   
 
Additionally, in the Scope of Work, Section C.3 (page C-10), it lists 4 results: 
 
“This activity seeks to achieve the following four Results:   
Result 1:  Sales of goods and services produced by MSMEs receiving USAID assistance 
increased by US$ 90 million, which generate 27,000 new full-time equivalent jobs.   
Result 2: Resources leveraged from public, private and civil society entities as a result of USAID 
assistance exceed US$ 15 million.   
Result 3:  Methodologies developed and implemented to assist public, private and civil society 
entities to measurably improve the trade and investment climate within selected economic 
corridors in the Sierra and possibly the Selva.   
Result 4:  Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Plan developed and implemented.” 
 



RFP 527-09-000005  Page 12 of 20 
Questions and Answers 
 
Are these results part of the Mission approved plan that was referenced in Section L.8? If so, do 
we need to provide a budget broken down for each of these results? 
 
Q24f:  In reference to Section L.8, page L-20 (the last three paragraphs in the section and table 
on the DFB cost summary), please confirm that budget summaries should be prepared for all 
three Program Areas/Elements and clarify whether the Line Items referred to in the table in this 
section indicate Account Categories/Cost Elements or Contract Line Items 
 
A24a-24f:  USAID has amended its suggested budget structure.   Offerors should propose three 
CLINS that match the development results on page C-10.  USAID requests three CLINs as 
follows:   
 
CLIN 1:  Sales and jobs increased and resources leveraged from Alliance partners 
 
CLIN 2: Trade and investment climate within selected economic corridors improved.   
 
CLIN 3:  Performance Monitoring and Evaluation implemented. 
 
Budgets should summarize costs for each CLIN.  Detailed cost categories/elements (i.e., 
wages, benefits, travel, equipment) shall compliment the summarized costs for each CLIN. 
 
Q25a:  Section L.6 (a) 1 states the offerors must submit an electronic copy of all documents in 
MS Word or Excel. May we submit a PDF copy instead to (1) maintain printer settings and 
formatting, and (2) keep the file size attachments down? 
 
Q25b:  On page L-6, the instructions state that the electronic copies of the technical and cost 
proposals are to be submitted in MS Word and MS Excel.  Because of the nature of certain 
documents, MS Word file versions are not available for submission.  May we instead submit our 
electronic proposal in Adobe PDF and MS Excel?  Alternatively, if this is not acceptable, may 
we submit graphics and signed documents in Adobe PDF while submitting the rest of the 
proposal in MS Word and MS Excel? 
 
 
A25a-25b:  Word Documents may be submitted in PDF format and all MS Excel documents 
shall be unlocked, with clear and accessible formulas.  Signed documents are acceptable in 
Adobe PDF. 
 
Q26:  Section C-5 paragraphs 4 and 5 state - “Poverty reduction is a Government of Peru 
national priority… the GOP has initiated a major program known as Sierra Exportadora to 
address rural poverty in the Sierra by expanding exports and markets”  “Recognizing the 
synergies between their objectives as well as the value of coordination and collaboration, 
USAID/PRA and Sierra Exportadora signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in April 
2007.” We have been unable to find a copy of this MOU in the attachments of the RFP.  We 
request that USAID make available a copy. 
 
A26:  Please see attached. 
 
Q27:  Section C-7 paragraph 2 states “for instance, the Offeror will identify policy constraints to 
competitiveness but will not directly address them; rather it will feed information into the policy 
dialogue for others to take action.”  How does USAID plan to go from policy dialogue to actions 
taken by others?  and C-7 Paragraph 3 states that “the new activity should specifically 
coordinate with MYPE to address policy barriers to competitiveness faced by MSMEs within 
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economic corridors”.  We have learned that the MYPE will end in September, 2009, is USAID 
contemplating a follow on MYPE project? 
 
A27:  USAID’s own staff and its MYPE Competitiva program will be our primary vehicles for 
engaging in the policy dialogue.  Yes, USAID is contemplating an activity to follow MYPE 
Competitiva.   
 
Q28:  In Indicator 1.3 – Sales of products and services that lead to conserving biodiversity 
increased by US$ 3 million.  1.3.2 – Sales of goods and services of participating MSMEs that 
are produced/provided in way that enhances biodiversity increased by US$3 million over 
baseline levels for the life of the Contract. The goods and services sold must have an explicit 
biodiversity objective and the intent to positively impact biodiversity in biologically significant 
areas.  The Offeror must submit a brief analysis of the threats to biodiversity and monitor 
associated indicators for biodiversity in the area where the goods and services are 
produced/provided.  Can USAID define “biologically significant areas?” for the corridors under 
consideration? 
 
A28:  All areas of Peru, including its coastal waters, have biological significance. We refer you 
to Peru’s National Biodiversity Strategy http://www.cbd.int/doc/world/pe/pe-nbsap-01-es.pdf and 
USAID’s guidance http://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf_docs/PNADE258.pdf to help you develop your 
approach.   
 
Q29: Is there flexibility in the first-year budget as indicated on page B-1 or must it be limited to 
$3.4 million or under? 
 
A29:  Page B-1 will be updated and completed upon award of this contract.  The budget 
disclosed is not a ceiling and reflects what we intend to obligate in the first year. 
 
Q30:  On page C-14, 2.6.1 indicates at least “8 institutions and or enterprises strengthened”.  
Can USAID please clarify if this refers to the ESCs or if this is for other institutions or 
enterprises? 
 
A30:  The offeror shall propose the types of institutes to be strengthened.  These institutions 
may or may not have been part of the first PRA program. 
 
Q31:  On page G-4, section G.6 provides Accounting and Appropriation Data that appears to be 
for a different project and fiscal year cycle.  Can USAID please clarify if this is the correct data?  
 
A31:  It is correct. 
 
Q32:  Can USAID please confirm that it only requires resumes, biodatas, and LOCs for the four 
key positions described in the RFP and that these will be the basis for the evaluation of Key 
Personnel as described in Section M?  
 
A32:  Yes. 
 
Q33:  Page M-2 indicates that the first year work plan should include all 5 elements requested 
by USAID. However, on page F-3, nine elements are listed.  Can USAID please clarify the 
number of elements USAID would like considered?  
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A33:  To be consistent with Section L, Section M, part C, first bullet point in the RFP is 
amended to read as follows:  “The extend to which the Draft First Year Work Plan includes all 9 
elements requested and is realistic, logical, and clear.” 
 
Q34:  Our on the ground research for this opportunity has surfaced questions about the 
potential collaboration with Sierra Exportadora.  While we recognize that SE is an important 
government entity active in the Sierra and that USAID has signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with them, interviewees have expressed concerns.  Can USAID provide more 
guidance on how they envision PRA working with Sierra Exportadora and specific activities they 
have in mind? 
 
A34:  The focus should be on implementing the MOU between USAID and Sierra Exportadora. 
Please see MOU attached. 
 
Q35:  We understand that during PRA the employment generation estimates were derived from 
sales data based on coefficients that varied for each industry. Can USAID please provide more 
information on how these data were derived?  
 
A36:  This information is provided in the definitions and the PRA evaluation. 
 
Q37:  Can USAID please clarify if a draft work plan is to be included within the 40 page limit of 
the technical or if this can be included as an attachment not subject to the technical page limit? 
 
A37:  The draft work plan is included in the 40 page limit.  
 
Q38:  Can USAID please indicate the amount of non-USAID support and for which periods of 
time it will be provided by private companies and/or regional governments for the Departments 
of Ancash and Huancavelica?  If there is support from non-USAID support for other 
Departments, may we request that USAID provide this as well?  
 
A38:  In the past, our partners in Ancash and Huancavelica provided about 80-90% of the 
operating costs of the ESCs, however USAID will renegotiate the MOUs with these companies 
after the contract is awarded.  Past partner contributions are no guarantee of future 
commitments.     
 
Q39:  The RFI stated that “the management plan shall include a staffing plan that fits the 
organizational charts, with position descriptions for all key personnel plus any professional-level 
positions that the Offeror proposes.” The RFP states “Clarity and appropriateness of overall 
organizational structure and staffing plan (including salary structure), including long-term 
personnel, short-term advisors, and administrative and support staff for the Lima, field, and U.S. 
headquarters offices.” Can USAID please confirm that we are not presenting c.v.’s or names of 
non-key personnel in this management plan, as this would give undue advantage to the 
incumbent?  
 
A39:  USAID only will consider CVs and names of key personnel in the management plan.  
 
Q40:  May we ask that USAID include a copy of the recommended FSN scale used by 
USAID/Peru? 
 
A40:  Offerors are expected to base salaries for local hires on a combination of various factors 
including an independent market survey and salary history.  The Mission’s compensation plan is 
not a tool that is used for this purpose. 
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Q41:  The RFP indicates that all reports will be submitted in both electronic and hard copy. For 
the reproduction line item, please provide the number of hard copies that need to be submitted. 
 
A41:  Six (6) hard copies.  
 
Q42:  Section L (f) requires the submission of audited balance sheets and profit and loss 
statements or if not available, returns as submitted to Federal tax authorities for the offeror’s last 
two complete fiscal years and for the current fiscal year as of 30 days prior to proposal 
submission. Please confirm that if an offeror has a NICRA with the US Government, it is not 
required to submit the documents in section L.(f) of the RFP. Also, if this item is required, does 
USAID require it of the offeror’s subcontractor’s? 
 
A42:  Offerors that have an approved NICRA with the USG do not need to provide the 
documentation listed under Section L (f).  This information is not required for proposed 
subcontractors. 
 
Q43a:  On page L16 1. It is written to “list in an annex to the technical proposal up to 10 of the 
most recent and relevant contracts for efforts similar to the work in the subject proposal.”  Is this 
a combined total between the offer and the major subcontractor or is the major subcontractor 
expected to submit 10 most recent and relevant contracts for efforts similar to the work in the 
subject proposal in addition to the 10 of the offeror? 
 
Q43b:  On page L-10 Result 1.1.1 states to “list in an annex to the technical proposal up to 10 
of the most recent and relevant contracts for efforts similar to the work in the subject proposal.”  
This is followed up on page M-3 section M -D which states “USAID will evaluate the Offeror’s 
past performance on related contracts using the following sub criteria of equal importance: 

• The Offeror and each major subcontractor’s (one whose proposed cost exceeds 20% of 
the Offeror’s total proposed cost) past performance implementing projects of similar size 
and complexity.”  

 
Does this mean that the Offeror must provide 10 of the most recent relevant contracts for the 
Offeror and for each major subcontractor or 10 recent relevant contracts in total? 
 
 
A43a-43b:  This is a combined total for the Offeror and any and all subcontractors.  
 
Q44:  On page L-14, Section B.2 Management Plan it is stated the management plan should be 
“part of the technical proposal attachments.”  Is this to say that the management plan is to be 
annexed in its entirety or is it to be included within the 40 page limit (excluding charts and 
graphs)? 
 
The management plan, excluding charts and graphs, is included in the 40 page limit. 
 
On page L-14/15, Section B.2 #1 it is stated “The organizational charts and staffing plan must 
relate directly to the strategies, activities and approaches described in the technical proposal, 
and will include long-term personnel, short term advisors, and administrative and support staff 
for the Lima, field and US headquarters offices, and the salary structure proposed for each 
office and staffing pattern;”  From our understanding no cost information is to be incorporated 
into the technical proposal, therefore can you please clarify what exactly is meant by the 
incorporation of a “salary structure” for the office and staffing pattern? 
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A44:  The salary structure should be presented as part of the Cost Proposal.   
 
Q45:  What are the rules for attribution of client sales and employment generated in terms of 
level of effort by the implementing agency?  Is there a minimum threshold of services delivered 
in order to claim attribution for sales and employment generated?  
 
A45:  For a new business, the implementer must demonstrate involvement in the development 
of the buyer’s business plan and the development of the partnership between the buyer and the 
producers.  
 
For an existing business, the implementer must demonstrate a direct relationship between its 
technical assistance and the sales growth of the producers or buyers, and it must demonstrate a 
direct relationship between its technical assistance and the resolution of a bottleneck or other 
business challenge that the buyer or producer would not have resolved on their own.  
 
Q46:  Does the structure/operations/approach of the existing ESCs in Huancavelica and Ancash 
have to be kept the same for these two ESCs under the proposed work or can it be changed?  
 
A46:  USAID will renegotiate the MOUs with these companies after the contract is awarded.  
Some modifications are possible, but it will depend on the negotiations.   
 
Q47:  Is the Result 2 target of leveraging $15 million from public, private, and civil society 
entities for the three base years of the project or does it include the two option years as well? 
 
A47:  It is for 5 years. 
 
Q48:  In Section C, Result 4.1.2 requests data on poverty reduction impact at the mid-point and 
three months prior to the end of the contract while Result 4.1.3 requests poverty reduction 
impact data reported quarterly. We would submit that gathering, analyzing and reporting on 
comprehensive poverty impact data quarterly would be costly and not show significant changes 
due to the relatively short period of time involved.  May offerors assume that poverty reduction 
data should be reported consistent with Section C, Result 4.1.2?  
 
A48:  Poverty reduction impact data needs to be reported annually.  Please see revised 
indicators 4.1.2 and 4.1.3.  
 
Q49a:  With Respect to Attachment 7, Definitions, the following clarifications are requested for 
No. (16): 
 
a.  USAID expects to leverage $2 worth of cash or in-kind resources from alliance partners for 
every one dollar USAID contributes to alliance/PPP development.  Please clarify how this 
USAID contribution will be determined in order to know the amount to be leveraged from the 
alliance partners.   
 
A49a:  The contractor shall propose a methodology to track expenditures towards alliance 
activities which USAID will approve and potentially audit.  
 
Q49b: There are two references to Result 3.  Please confirm that these should make reference 
to Result 2. 
 
A49b:   Yes, it should refer to Result 2.  
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Q49c: The definition states that funds from “other donors and multilateral banks” can be 
leveraged but cannot count toward the resource leveraging result (i.e., Result 2 in Section C). 
Please confirm that the “donors” referenced are international government donors, e.g. GTZ, and 
not international foundations, local foundations, or private Peruvian or international philanthropic 
organizations. 
 
A49c:Yes, donors and banks includes multi and bilateral donors and banks but does not include 
foundations. 

 
Q50:  Section L.6.(a), Submission, (page L-7, paragraph right after the addresses) states that 
proposals must remain valid for 120 days while block 12 of Standard Form 33, mentions 90 
days. Please clarify. 
 
A50:  120 days. 
 
Q51:  In page F-5 under F.5.9 – PMP, the solicitation states that the PMP needs to be delivered 
within 30 days after contract award and in the table on F-2 it says 90 days. Please clarify the 
timing for this submission. 
 
A51:  90 days. 
 
Q52:  Section L.9 provides instructions for the preparation of a Branding Implementation Plan 
(BIP) that, per Section D.3, also includes a Marking Plan (MP). Please confirm that the BIP and 
the MP are to be included in the technical volume as attachments or annexes. 
 
A52:  The Branding and Marking Plans can be included as attachments. 
 
Q53:  On page L-17, the instructions request submission of the contractor’s most recent SF-294 
reports for the past three years. Our SF-294 reports for this period number more than 300 
hundred pages. May we instead submit the required set of reports one single PDF file on CD-
ROM to be included with the hard copy of the technical proposal? Alternatively, if PDF files on 
CD-ROM are not acceptable, may we submit copies of our 10 most recent and relevant SF-294 
reports in an annex to the technical? 
 
A53:  Submit the 10 most recent and relevant SF-294 reports in an annex. 
 
Q54:  Section L.7.B.2(1) requires a management plan as an attachment to the technical 
proposal to include, among others, a staffing plan that provides a salary structure for the project.  
Please confirm that the salary structure should be part of the cost proposal, not the technical 
proposal. 
 
A54:  The salary structure should be presented as part of the Cost Proposal. 
 
Q55:  In accordance with the Peruvian labor law requirement to extend severance payments to 
local long-term employees, we respectfully request the addition of FAR 52.237-8, Restriction of 
Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals, and FAR 52.237-9, Waiver of Limitation on 
Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals, to the contract clauses. 
 
A55:  FAR 52.237-8, Restriction of Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals, and FAR 52.237-
9, Waiver of Limitation on Severance Payments to Foreign Nationals will apply to this 
procurement. 
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Q56:  Section B.1 Purpose references three Program Areas: 4.2: Trade and Investment; 4.6: 
Private Sector Competitiveness; and 4.8: Environment. In section B.4 Cost Schedule, USAID 
indicates that proposed costs must support the program areas listed in the table; however, only 
4.2 is listed in the table. Throughout the RFP there is only one other reference to 4.6 in Section 
C. on page C-2, 3rd paragraph down, and no additional references to 4.8. Should these 
additional two Program Areas be included in section B.4 as part of the cost schedule?  
 
 A56:  Please refer to amended section of part B 1. 
 
Q57:  Under Section L.7.B.2, point 1), the Offeror is required to include the salary structure 
proposed for each office and staffing pattern. The salary structure will also be evaluated as one 
of the evaluation criteria under Sub-factor B-2 Management Plan. Please confirm that USAID 
expects to see this cost information included in the technical proposal. 
 
A57:  The Management Plan does not need to include the salary structure. The reference to 
salary structure has been deleted from the evaluation criteria under sub-factor B-2 Management 
Plan and from Section L.7.B.2.    
 
Q58:  Under Section L.7.C, Organizational Capability, the Offeror is required to submit a draft 
first year work plan that includes projected expenditures per month. Please confirm that USAID 
expects to see this cost information included in the technical proposal. 
 
A58: The RFP is amended to delete this reference.  The draft work plan should not include 
expenditures per month. 
 
Q59:  Will the PRA/M&E program and web-based program be transferred and will the PRA/M&E 
database also be transferred to the new project? 
 
Section L of the RFP instructs offerors to organize the Technical Approach narrative under 
Result 1 by indicator. Would USAID prefer that the narrative for the remaining three result areas 
be organized in a similar fashion? 
 
A59:  Yes. 
 
Q60:  Please confirm that USAID does not expect to receive a draft Performance Monitoring 
Plan with the proposal as it is not listed in Section L and Section M. 
 
A60:  USAID does expect a PMP in accordance with page L-11 under Result 4.  USAID will 
evaluate the PMP in accordance with page M-1, Result 4. 
 
Q61:  The RFP states in Section C that the contractor can work in the Selva if significant 
resources can be raised to replicate the PRA model.  Do these resources have to finance new 
C&PRA activities in the Selva, or could USAID resources be used in the Selva instead, if these 
new resources are designated specifically for the Sierra. (e.g., funding from a mining company 
to replicate PRA model in a Sierra Province could free-up USAID funding to work in a Selva 
province)? 
 
A61:  USAID would enter into the Selva if significant resources were raised from a partner 
based or operating in the Selva.  
 
 
COST PROPOSAL-RELATED QUESTIONS 
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Q1:  On Page B-2 in the cost schedule, the chart shows “Base year”.  Should this be amended 
to read base years?   
 
A1:  There is one base year with two one year options. 
 
Q2:  On page B-2, USAID requests a budgeting of activities according to the three CLINs 
identified.  The CLINs requested in the RFP do not refer to separate activities or to activities 
funded by separate sources of money. May we provide the CLINs at the summary level only 
and not at the detailed budget level?  
 
Q2a:  Please expand upon Section L-20, with regards to the development-focused budget 
(DFB) requirement. Will the DFB reflect the program Results as per page C-10, or other?  
 
A2-2a:  SEE A24. 
 
Q3:  Per Cost Schedule B.4, only three CLINS are referenced and do not reflect all of the 
Results per page C-10. Result 1 of the RFP appears to be broken out into CLINs 1 and 2. 
Likewise, there are no CLINs represented for Results 3 and 4. Please clarify if the CLINS are 
meant to reflect the Results per C-10 or is B.4 correct. 
 
A3:  SEE A24. 
 
Q4:  Will office furniture, equipment, computers, vehicles from the PRA project be made 
available for this project? And if so, can this inventory be provided ? 
 
A4:  Office furniture, equipment, computers, and vehicles should be included in proposed 
budgets.  PRA inventory will not be transferred to the winner. 
 
Q5:  Please clarify whether or not short-term expatriate personnel have a six-day work week. 
 
A6:  Yes. 
 
Q6:  Does the budget of US$ 13- 15 million refer to the 3 base years, or does that include the 2 
options years? 
 
A6:  It is a 5 year budget.  
 
 
OTHER/GENERAL  

 
Q1:  Do proposals hand carried by a member of the firm need to be passed through security 
review?  If so, please confirm that the Pre-screening Department would only operate from 9:00 
a.m. to 11:00 am on Friday, March 27, 2009 and that the proposals are due at 9:00 am on this 
day. 
 
A2:  The preferred method for hand-delivering proposals is to enter the USAID lobby.  A staff 
member from the Regional Contracts Office will accept the proposal.  Delivery should take place 
no later than the specified/amended due date and time.  Pre-screening will take place with the 
guards.  Office hours are 8:00 am – 5:00 pm.    
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Q2:  Will USAID allow submission of electronic files, such as Adobe Acrobat so that appendixes 

can be merged into one document with the technical proposal? 
 
A2:  This is allowed provided that Excel Documents are readable and formulas are accessible.  
 
Q3:  What is USAID’s anticipated start date for this activity?  
 
A3:  Mid-July 2009. 
 
Q4:  On the Title Page, USAID indicates that it “plans to award a CPFF contract with a total 
estimated cost between $13-$15 million”.  Can USAID please clarify if this amount is for the 
base period of 36 months only, or if this estimated amount is expected to cover five years of 
implementation, including the two option years?  
 
A4:  The passage “plans to award a CPFF contract with a total estimated cost between $13-$15 
million” on the cover letter that you are quoting, finishes like this: “…over a base period of 36 
months plus two (2) one-year options.”  
 
Proposed budgets shall be for the entire period of five years.  
 
Q5:  What are the provisions for VAT and methods for obtaining appropriate VAT waivers?   
 
A5:  VAT is not considered an eligible cost. In Peru, all US contractors should pay the VAT and 
recover that cost through USAID. 
 
Q6:  Will USAID authorize a 6-day work week for Expatriate and TCN STTA in the field?  
 
A6:  Yes. 
 
Q7:  Is the phase out/transfer to other institutions of service provision to occur in 3 yrs or 5 
years?  
 
A7:  If USAID decides not to exercise the Option Year(s), then the phase out and transfers will 
occur the end of Base Year 3.  
 
Q8: USAID refers Offerors to Section J for a copy of the Initial Environmental Examination; 
however, section J does not include it as provided. Could USAID please provide a copy?  
 
A8:  See amendment for Section J. 

 
  
 
 

[END OF ATTACHMENT] 
 

[END OF AMENDMENT ONE TO SOLICITATION 527-09-000005] 
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ENVIRONMENTAL THRESHOLD DECISION 
 
 
Activity Location: Peru 
 
Activity Title: Private Sector Competitiveness 
 
Activity Number: 527-xxxx 
 
Life-of-Activity Funding: $15 million 
 
Life-of-Activity: FY 2009 – FY 2013 
 
IEE prepared by: Victor E. Merino, MEO 
 
Reference ETDs and EA: LAC-EA-04-08 (PEA); LAC-EA-05-04 

(F/BEA); LAC-EA-06-03 (EA) 
 
Recommended Threshold Decision: Categorical Exclusion, 
 Negative Determination with Conditions 
  
Bureau Threshold Decision: Categorical Exclusion, 
 Negative Determination with Conditions 
  
 
Comments:   
 
A Categorical Exclusion is issued to aspects of the Private Sector Competitiveness 
activities involving technical and market studies, training, technical assistance, and 
institution building activities, pursuant to 22 CFR 216.2(c)(2): 

 
(i)  Education, technical assistance, or training programs except to the extent 

such programs include activities directly affecting the environment (such as 
construction of facilities, etc.);  

(iii)  Analyses, studies, academic or research workshops and meetings; 
(v)  Document and information transfers;  
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(xiv) Studies, projects or programs intended to develop the capability of recipient 
countries to engage in development planning, except to the extent designed 
to result in activities directly affecting the environment, such as construction 
of facilities, etc. 

 
A Negative Determination with Conditions is issued to the Private Sector 
Competitiveness activities related to improving production practices, post harvesting 
practices, and industrial processing, provided that: 1) the implementing agency will 
monitor and conduct specific environmental analysis for interventions of significant scale 
and investment magnitude, to ensure that appropriate mitigation procedures are in place, 
based on the Programmatic Environmental Assessment approved through LAC IEE-04-
08, and 2) the implementing agency will also ensure that technical assistance in 
production technologies complies with the Pesticide Evaluation Report and Safer Use 
Action Plan (PERSUAP) approved through LAC-EA-06-03, and, finally, GOP 
environmental regulations.  Specific “conditions”: 
 
• The attached IEE Annex 1 “Guidelines for Implementing Partners on the 

USAID/Haiti Environmental Mitigation Report” will be used as a model for 
developing an environmental review system for specific, proposed activities that 
include infrastructure, business development activities, and other activities with 
potential minor environmental impacts; and develop the necessary mitigation and 
monitoring plans.  The Mission may utilize alternative environmental review 
procedures similar to those of USAID/Haiti with the concurrence of the Regional 
Environmental Advisor (REA). 

 
• Each individual environmental review based on the above system will be approved by 

the Mission Environmental Officer with a copy to the REA. 
 
• Where applicable, comply with the appropriate section (especially Chapter 4, 

Environmental Issues and Best Practices for Microfinance Institutions and Micro and 
Small-Scale Enterprises) of USAID/LAC Environmental Guidelines for Development 
Activities in Latin America and the Caribbean.  Link in English: 

o http://www.usaid.gov/locations/latin_america_caribbean/environm
ent/docs/epiq/epiq.html:   

and in Spanish:  
o http://www.imacmexico.org/ev_en.php?ID=15275_201&ID2=DO

_TOPIC or 
o http://www.ecologica.org.br/UserFiles/docs/Artigos%20MudClima

ticas/Untitled%20Folder/ 
 
• The mission will make every effort to support (certified) organic and sustainable 

farming practices in the agricultural sector, and certified sustainable, “green” or 
similar best environmental practices in its ESCs and MSMEs and other business 
development as part of its strategy for the Private Sector Competitiveness activity to 
reach new markets.  

 

 2

http://www.usaid.gov/locations/latin_america_caribbean/environment/docs/epiq/epiq.html
http://www.usaid.gov/locations/latin_america_caribbean/environment/docs/epiq/epiq.html
http://www.imacmexico.org/ev_en.php?ID=15275_201&ID2=DO_TOPIC
http://www.imacmexico.org/ev_en.php?ID=15275_201&ID2=DO_TOPIC
http://www.ecologica.org.br/UserFiles/docs/Artigos%20MudClimaticas/Untitled%20Folder/
http://www.ecologica.org.br/UserFiles/docs/Artigos%20MudClimaticas/Untitled%20Folder/
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• The mission will conduct an external review by a recognized environmental expert of 
the effectiveness of these conditions, mitigation and monitoring by the 31 December 
2009 for approval by the REA and BEO.   

 
Conditions also include:  
 
Responsibilities 
 
• Each activity manager or Cognizant Technical Officer (CTO) is responsible for 

making sure environmental conditions are met (ADS 204.3.4).  In addition, CTOs are 
responsible for ensuring that appropriate environmental guidelines are followed, 
mitigation measures in the IEE are funded and implemented, and that adequate 
monitoring and evaluation protocols are in place to ensure implementation of 
mitigation measures. 

 
• It is the responsibility of the Strategic Objective (SO) Team to ensure that 

environmental compliance language from the ETD is added to procurement and 
obligating documents, such as activity-related Strategic Objective Grant Agreements 
(SOAGs) and Modified Acquisition and Assistance Request Documents (MAARDs). 

 
• The Mission Environmental Officer will conduct spot checks to ensure that 

conditions in the IEE and this ETD are met.  These evaluations will review whether 
guidelines are properly used to implement activities under this ETD in an 
environmentally sound and sustainable manner according to USAID and applicable 
U.S. Government policies and regulations. 

 
• The implementing contractor or partner will ensure that all activities conducted 

under this instrument comply with this ETD.  Also, through its regular reporting 
requirements, a section on environmental compliance (e.g. mitigation monitoring 
results) will be included.  

 
Amendments 
 
• Amendments to Initial Environmental Examinations (IEE) shall be submitted for 

LAC Bureau Environmental Officer (BEO) approval for any activities not specifically 
covered in the IEE, which include: 

 
o Funding level increase beyond ETD amount, 

o Time period extension beyond ETD dates (even for no cost extension), or  

o A change in the scope of work, such as the use of pesticides or activities 
subject to Foreign Assistance Act sections 118 and 119 (e.g. procurement 
of logging equipment), among others.  

• Amendments to IEEs include Environmental Assessments (EA or PEA) and approval 
of these documents by the LAC BEO could require an annual evaluation for 
environmental compliance. 

 3
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     Date   
 Victor H. Bullen 
 Bureau Environmental Officer 
 Bureau for Latin America & the Caribbean 

 
 

Copy to:  Paul Weisenfeld, USAID/Peru, Mission 
Director  

 Steve Olive, EGT 
 Juan Robles, EGT 
 Victor Merino, MEO 
 Jeremiah Carew, PDP 
 Catherine Lott, ODI 

 
Copy to:  Bruce Bayle, Regional Environmental 

Advisor, USAID/Colombia 
 
Copy to: Mike Karbeling, David Johnston, Joann 

Lawrence, LAC/SA 
 
Copy to:  IEE File 
 

 
Attachments:   
• Initial Environmental Examination 
 
File:  P:\LAC.RSD.PUB\RSDPUB\EES\Reg 216\IEE\IEE08\LAC-IEE-08-41 ETD (PE 
Private Sector Competitiveness 08-41).doc 
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INITIAL ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION 
 

 
Activity Location: Peru  
 
Activity Title: Private Sector Competitiveness 
  
Activity Number: 527- 
 
Life of Activity Funding $15,000,000   
      
Life of Activity:  FY 2009 – FY 2013 

  
Reference Environmental Threshold LAC-EA-04-08 (PEA); LAC-EA-05-04 (F/BEA);  

Decisions LAC-EA-06-03 (EA) 

 
IEE Prepared by: Victor E. Merino, MEO  

 

Date Prepared:  June 3, 2008 

 

Recommended Threshold Decision: Negative Determination with Conditions and 
Categorical Exclusion 

 

 

 

1. BACKGROUND AND ACTIVITY/PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

 

1.1 Purpose and Scope of IEE 
 

The approval of this Initial Environmental Evaluation (IEE) is needed to comply with existing 
policy and statutory requirements for the implementation of the new private sector 
competitiveness activity to be implemented in the highlands and jungle regions of Peru.  

 5
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1.2 Background 

led 

SMEs) to new markets where Peruvian businesses potentially can be competitive. 
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les and 

RA’s proven methodology 
hile leveraging a variety of new public and private resources. 

ram 
ru 

e of “increased economic 
pportunities for the poor in selected economic corridors.”   

.3 Description of Activities 

le 

iness development services to support market-led 
conomic activities in the targeted regions. 

de the continuation of ESCs already existing under PRA as well as the 
reation of new ESCs.   

terventions would include: 

1)  
istics 

e training small-scale farmers to build 
their capacity to enter higher value supply chains.   

 

 
The purpose of this activity is to help reduce poverty in targeted areas of Peru through trade-
growth.  A top U.S. Government policy priority for Peru is to help the Government of Peru 
(GOP) down this path and demonstrate that increased trade and investment will also bring 
reductions in poverty. The activity focuses on linking micro, small, and medium enterprises 
(M
 
 
A methodology developed by USAID, and implemented extensively in recent years in Peru
the Economic Service Centers (ESC) model, where centers stimulate trade and investment 
through a market-led approach.  The ESCs identify markets first, and then provide business 
development services that link MSMEs to higher value markets.   This model, developed under 
USAID/Peru’s Poverty Reduction and Alleviation (PRA) project, has greatly increased sa
jobs of MSMEs in the targeted geographical areas where poverty is well entrenched  and 
constraints to economic growth are great. This activity will use P
w
 
The activity will address elements of the Foreign Assistance Framework found under “Prog
Area 4.6: Private Sector Competitiveness,” and will contribute directly to the USAID/Pe
Economic Growth and Environment (EGE) Program objectiv
o
 
 
1
 
The proposed activity aims to: (1) Expand this model in the impoverished highlands and jung
departments of Peru to improve the competitiveness of MSMEs; (2) Create strategic public-
private partnerships to reduce poverty through trade-led growth; and (3) Increase private and 
public investments in infrastructure and bus
e
 
This activity will finance the creation and operation of ESCs in a minimum of four highland 
regions, which may inclu
c
 
In
 

 Provide technical assistance to producers and investors in targeted economic corridors to 
improve sector supply and value-chain competitiveness, to ensure that product character
meet product specifications demanded by markets, and increase productivity, including 
access to new technologies. The program will includ
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2) Facilitate access to market information needed to make business investment and management 
decisions. 

 
3)  Conduct public-private dialogues (business roundtables) to identify and implement actions to 

reduce transaction costs and promote market-led development in the targeted regions. 
 
 
1.4 Locations Affected  
 
Interventions will take place in targeted economic corridors in the highland and jungle regions to 
link them into higher value chains and to create market-driven income and employment 
opportunities.  For the purposes of this activity, the highlands is defined by altitude and will be 
considered to include those Departments in the Andes mountains where the majority of land area 
is above 5,905 feet of elevation (1,800 meters).  The jungle is defined as the Departments east of 
the Andes.  USAID/Peru will provide final concurrence on the location of the ESCs and 
economic corridors that will be served.  The Contractor will propose priority corridors in the 
highlands and jungle with economic potential where USAID/Peru can implement ESCs by 
leveraging other public and private resources, and where assistance may be provided consistent with 
USAID/Peru’s counternarcotics policy.  
 
   
1.5 National Environmental Policies, Procedures, and Regulations 
 

The General Environmental Law N° 28611 (Ley General del Ambiente) is the main GOP 
regulation governing environmental protection and management issues.  Law N° 27446 
establishes the national system for environmental impact assessment (see: respectively 
http://www.conam.gob.pe/LGA.pdf and 
http://www.conam.gob.pe/documentos/evaluacion/Ley%20N%2027446%20-%20EIA.pdf). 
There are also specific regulations that are applicable to each economic sector such as 
agriculture, manufacture, fisheries, tourism, transportation, and communication (for most sectors, 
see: http://www.conam.gob.pe/modulos/home/leg_amb.asp). 

 
 
2.  EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT POTENTIAL 
 

Training, technical assistance, providing market information, and conducting business 
roundtables will not have a significant effect on the natural or physical environment.  However, 
depending on the kind of products and location of production activities that an ESC will support, 
production practices, post-harvesting, and industrial processing could have an impact on the 
environment and biodiversity due to the use of pesticides, generation of waste products, and use 
of water and soil for production.  The to-be-selected Contractor will be required to follow 
guidelines to prevent and/or mitigate environmental impacts.   It is, therefore, expected activities 
related to the themes mentioned previously shall comply with Peruvian regulations and 
USAID/Latin America and the Caribbean Environmental Guidelines.  

 

 7

http://www.conam.gob.pe/LGA.pdf
http://www.conam.gob.pe/documentos/evaluacion/Ley%20N%2027446%20-%20EIA.pdf
http://www.conam.gob.pe/modulos/home/leg_amb.asp


LAC-IEE-08-41 
 

 

3.  RECOMMENDED THRESHOLD DECISIONS AND MITIGATION ACTIONS 
 

3.1 Recommended Threshold Decisions and Conditions 
 
In accordance with USAID Environmental procedures set forth in Title 22 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 216 (22 CFR 216), the EGE Team recommends that the BEO issue a 
Categorical Exclusion for technical and market studies, training, technical assistance, and 
institution building activities, since they fall within the classes of actions described in Section 
216.2(c)(2), as follows: 

- (i) education, technical assistance or training programs except to the extent such 
programs include activities directly affecting the environment (such as construction of 
facilities, etc.); 

- (iii) Analyses, studies, academic or research workshops and meetings;  
- (v) Document and information transfers; 
- (xiv) studies, projects or programs intended to develop the capability of recipient 

countries to engage in development planning, except to the extent designed to result in 
activities directly affecting the environment, such as construction of facilities, etc.; 

 
and Negative Determination with Conditions for the activities related to improving production 
practices, post harvesting practices, and industrial processing, provided that: 1) the implementing 
agency will monitor and conduct specific environmental analysis for interventions of significant 
scale and investment magnitude, to ensure that appropriate mitigation procedures are in place, 
based on the Programmatic Environmental Assessment approved through LAC IEE-04-08, and 
2) the implementing agency will also ensure that technical assistance in production technologies 
complies with the Pesticide Evaluation Report and Safer Use Action Plan (PERSUAP) approved 
through LAC-EA-06-03, and, finally, GOP environmental regulations.  Specific “conditions”: 
 
• The attached Annex 1 “Guidelines for Implementing Partners on the USAID/Haiti 

Environmental Mitigation Report” will be used as a model for developing an environmental 
review system for specific, proposed activities that include infrastructure, business 
development activities, and other activities with potential minor environmental impacts; and 
develop the necessary mitigation and monitoring plans.  The Mission may utilize alternative 
environmental review procedures similar to those of USAID/Haiti with the concurrence of 
the Regional Environmental Advisor (REA). 

 
• Each individual environmental review based on the above system will be approved by the 

Mission Environmental Officer with a copy to the REA. 
 
• Where applicable, comply with the appropriate section of USAID LAC Environmental 

Guidelines for Development Activities in Latin America and the Caribbean.  Link in English: 
o http://www.usaid.gov/locations/latin_america_caribbean/environment/doc

s/epiq/epiq.html:   
and in Spanish:  
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o http://www.imacmexico.org/ev_en.php?ID=15275_201&ID2=DO_TOPIC 
or 

o http://www.ecologica.org.br/UserFiles/docs/Artigos%20MudClimaticas/U
ntitled%20Folder/ 

 
 
3.2 Mitigation, Monitoring, and Evaluation 

 
The team recommends that for activities related to improving production practices, post- 
harvesting practices, and industrial processing, the following actions are taken: 
 
a) USAID/Peru will monitor this activity to ensure compliance with accepted guidelines;  
 
b) The contractor will ensure incorporation of best practices in compliance with existing GOP 

regulations;  
 
c) The contractor will work to implement an environmental monitoring plan to ensure that                          

recommended mitigation measures are being adopted during the implementation of this 
activity; and   

 
d) The contractor will include a section on environmental compliance (monitoring/evaluation) 

in its regular quarterly/final reports.  
 
Compliance with these recommendations will be monitored by the Cognizant Technical Officer 
and the Mission Environmental Officer. 
 
 
 
 
Approval:___________________________    Date:  ______________ 
      Paul E. Weisenfeld 

 Mission Director 
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GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTING PARTNERS ON THE 
USAID HAITI ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATION REPORT (EMR) 

 
Attachment 1: 

 
I.  COVERSHEET FOR ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATION REPORT (EMR)  

 
 
USAID HAITI MISSION SO # and Title:  __________________________________ 
 
Title of IP Activity:  __________________________________________________ 
 
IP Name:  __             __________________________________________________ 
 
Funding Period:   FY______ - FY______ 
 
Resource Levels (US$): ______________________ 
 
Report Prepared by:  Name:__________________________ Date: ____________ 
 
Date of Previous EMR:  _________________  (if any) 
 
 
 
Status of Fulfilling Mitigation Measures and Monitoring: 
 

_____ Initial EMR describing mitigation plan is attached (Yes or No). 
 
_____ Annual EMR describing status of mitigation measures is established and 

attached (Yes or No). 
 

_____ Certain mitigation conditions could not be satisfied and remedial action has 
been provided within the EMR (Yes or No). 

 
 

USAID Haiti Clearance of EMR: 
 
Cognizant Technical Officer: _______________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
Mission Environmental Officer:  _______________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
Regional Environmental Advisor:  _______________________ Date: ______________ 



 

II.  Environmental Mitigation Report Narrative 
 

Note: summary instructions are in italics and not to be included 
in the report, but rather should be filled out with project specific 

information) 
 

Note: Outline to be included in the report is in bold. 

 
 
1. Background, Rationale and Outputs/Results Expected:   
 
 Summarize and cross-reference proposal if this review is contained therein. 
 
2. Activity Description:  
  
 Succinctly describe location, siting, surroundings (include a map, even a sketch 

map).  Provide both quantitative and qualitative information about actions needed 
during construction, how intervention will operate and any ancillary development 
activities that are required to build or operate the primary activity (e.g., road to a 
facility, need to quarry or excavate borrow material, need to lay utility pipes to 
connect with energy, water source or disposal point or any other activity needed 
to accomplish the primary one but in a different location).  If various alternatives 
have been considered and rejected because the proposed activity is considered 
more environmentally sound, explain these.  

 
3. Environmental Baseline:   
 
 Described affected environment, including essential baseline information 

available for all affected locations and sites, both primary and ancillary activities. 
 
4. Evaluation of Environmental Impact Potential of Activities (Table 2):  

 
As a component of the Identification of Mitigation Plan (Attachment 1, Table 2), 
describe impacts that could occur before construction starts, during construction 
and during operation, as well as any problems that might arise with restoring or 
reusing the site, if the facility or activity were completed or ceased to exist.   
Explain direct, indirect, induced and cumulative effects on various components of 
the environment (e.g., air, water, geology, soils, vegetation, wildlife, aquatic 
resources, historic, archaeological or other cultural resources, people and their 
communities, land use, traffic, waste disposal, water supply, energy, etc.).  
Indicate positive impacts and how the natural resources base will be sustainably 
improved. 

 



 

For example, any activity that increases human presence in an area, even 
temporarily, will increase noise, waste, and the potential for 
hunting, timbering, etc.   

 
5.  Environmental Mitigation Actions (Tables 2 & 3): 
 
 For each component of the program, list the mitigation measures in the 

Identification of Mitigation Plan (Table 2) and monitoring of these mitigation 
measures in the Environmental Monitoring and Evaluation Tracking Table (Table 
3). 

 
Describe status of complying with the conditions. Examples of the types of 
questions an IP should answer to describe "status" follow.  
 
1) What mitigation measures have been put in place? How is the 

successfulness of mitigation measures being determined? If they are 
not working, why not? What adjustments need to be made? 

 
2) What is being monitored, how frequently and where, and what action 

is being taken (as needed) based on the results of the monitoring? In 
some situations, an IP will need to note that the monitoring program 
is still being developed with intent to satisfy the conditions. 
Alternatively, it could happen that the conditions cannot be achieved 
because of various impediments.  

 
  



 

III-A.  Environmental Screening Form (Table 1) 
 
 

Column 
A 

Column 
B Col C 

If answered yes to 
Col. A. is it a--? 

Name of 
Activity:________________________________________________ 
Type of 
Activity:________________________________________________ 
Grantee: 
_______________________________________________________ 
Date:___________________________________________________ 

Yes No  
High Risk 

 
Medium-

Risk 

IMPACT ON NATURAL RESOURCES & COMMUNITIES 
1 Will the project involve construction1 of any type of structure (building, 

check dam, walls, etc)? 
    

2 Will the project involve the construction2 or repair of roads or trails?     
3 Will the project involve the use, involve plans to use or training in the 

use of any chemical compounds such as pesticides3 (including neem), 
herbicides, paint, varnish, lead-based products, etc? 

    

4 Involve the construction of repair of irrigation systems?     
5 Involve the construction or repair of fish ponds?     
6 Involve the disposal of used engine oil?     
7 Will the project involve implementation of timber management4 or 

extraction of forest products? 
    

8 Are there any potentially sensitive terrestrial or aquatic areas near the 
project site, including protected areas? 

    

9 Does the activity impact upon wildlife, forest resources, or wetlands?     
10 Will the activities proposed generate airborne gases, liquids, or solids 

(i.e. discharge pollutants) 
    

11 Will the waste generated during or after the project impact on 
neighboring surface or ground water? 

    

12 Will the activity result in clearing of forest cover?     
13 Will the activity contribute to erosion?     
14 Is the activity incompatible with existing land use in the vicinity?     
15 Will the activity contribute to displace housing?     
16 Will the activity affect unique geologic or physical features?     
17 Will the activity contribute to change in the amount of surface water in 

any body? 
    

18 Will the activity deal with mangroves and coral reefs?     
19 Will the activity expose people or property to flooding?     
20 Will the activity contribute substantial reduction in the amount of ground 

water otherwise available for public water supplies? 
    

21 Will the activity create objectionable odors?     
22 Will the activity violate air standard?     
      
LOCAL PLANNING PERMITS 
23 Does the activity e.g. infrastructure improvements require local planning 

permission(s)? 
    

24 Does the activity meet the national building code (e.g. infrastructure 
improvements)? 

    

25 Is the activity incompatible with existing land use?     
 
 
 

    



 

ENVIRONMENT & HEALTH 
26 Will the project activities create conditions encouraging an increase of 

waterborne diseases or populations of disease carrying vectors?  
    

27 For road rehabilitation as well as water and sanitation grants, has a 
maintenance plan been submitted?   

    

28 Will the activity generate hazards or barriers for pedestrians, motorists 
or persons with disabilities? 

    

29 Will the activity increase existing noise levels?     
30 Will the project involve the disposal of syringes, gauzes, gloves and 

other biohazard medical waste? 
    

1 Construction projects need to be reviewed for scale, planned use, building code needs and 
maintenance.  Some small construction projects, such as building an entrance sign to a park, may require 
simple mitigations whereas larger buildings will require more extensive review and monitoring. 
2 New construction of roads and trails will require a full environmental assessment of the planned 
construction. 
3 The planned involvement of pesticides will trigger the need to develop a Supplemental Initial 
Environmental Examination that meets USAID pesticide procedures (Pesticide Evaluation Report and 
Safer Use Action Plan or “PERSUAP”) for the project.   
4 Any activities the involve harvesting trees or converting forests will require a full environmental 
assessment of the activity. 
 



 

 



 

III-B.  Identification of Mitigation Plan (Table 2) 
 Enter the Question/Row # of the potential negative impacts with check marks in Column A (Table 1) and complete 

table below for mitigation measures to reduce or eliminate the issue.  
 
 
# 

 
Sub-activity or 
component 

 
Description of Impact 

 
Mitigation Measures 

1 Component 1   
2 Component 2   
3    
4    
 
* provide overview of measures used from the USAID LAC Environmental Guidelines or other pertinent guidelines, details on exact 
monitoring plan are illustrated in Table 3, Environmental Monitoring and Evaluation Tracking Table. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION (Check Appropriate Action):   (Check) 

(a) The project has no potential for substantial adverse environmental effects.  No further environmental 
review is required.  

(b) The project has little potential for substantial adverse environmental effects, however the 
recommended mitigation measures will be incorporated in the activity design. No further 
environmental review is required. 

 

(c) The project has substantial but mitigatable adverse environmental effects and required measures to 
mitigate environmental effects will be incorporated. 

 

(d) The project has potentially substantial or significant adverse environmental effects, but requires more 
analysis to form a conclusion.  An Environmental Assessment will be prepared. 

 

(e) The project has potentially substantial adverse environmental effects, and revisions to the project 
design or location or the development of new alternatives is required. 

 

(f) The project has substantial and unmitigable adverse environmental effects.  Mitigation is insufficient to 
eliminate these effects and alternatives are not feasible.  The project is not recommended for funding. 

 

III-C.  Environmental Monitoring and Evaluation Tracking Table (Table 3). 
 
 



 

Type of Project:  

Project Name:  

Implementing Organization:   

Location Name:  

Project Size:  

Nearby Communities:  

Senior Project Manager: Date: 

Monitoring Period:   

 
Monitoring Methods Results 

# 
Description of 

Mitigation 
Measure 

Responsible 
Party Indicators Methods Frequency 

Estimated 
Cost Dates 

Monitored 
Problems 

Encountered 
Mitigation 

Effectiveness 

Recommended 
Adjustments 

1    
2    
3    

1       

4    
1    
2    
3    

2       

4    
1    
2    
3    

3       

4    
1    
2    

4       

3    
 



Summary of the Environmental Mitigation Report (EMR) 
 
The EMR initially categorizes projects into three types: No Risk, Medium Risk and High 
Risk.  Those with No Risk can continue without further review.  Those with High Risk 
must be reconsidered for the need of an Environmental Assessment.  The EMR deals 
with those projects at Medium Risk. 
 
During the acquisition process, the applicant or contractor submits a suggested EMR.  
Once the Implementing Partner is chosen a revised initial EMR is submitted for approval 
by the Mission Environmental Officer BEFORE commencing activities.  A format for 
this initial EMR is provided and includes an initial screening process (Table 1) to assure 
the project is at the Medium Risk Level.  Potential Impacts and related mitigation 
measures (Table 2) are also identified per sub-activity. 
 
At the end of each year of implementation the EMR is resubmitted with the same 
information as provided initially plus a component reflecting implementation and 
effectiveness monitoring of the identified mitigation measures. 
 
The benefit of this process is: 

• The majority of the work is in the hands of the implementing partner, not the AID 
Mission personnel 

• The Implementer Partner does not have to consult with the mission for No-Risk 
projects, thus streamlining the implementation. 

• The Implementing Partner itself identifies the appropriate mitigation measures 
(using the appropriate resources) to make sure they make sense.  This is verified 
and approved by the MEO. 

• The mitigation measures are identified and in place before project initiation. 
• There is an annual monitoring process for implementation and effectiveness of the 

recommended mitigation measures. 
 
Potential Pitfalls: 

• The CTOs will be crucial in ensuring the Implementing Partners take this process 
seriously and comply.  The importance must be emphasized with them. 

• The MEO will need more time to start the process off effectively. 
• Support of the process from Mission Management and Team Leaders is crucial to 

success. 
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Timeline of Reporting Requirement for Environmental Mitigation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Schematic of required action based on the level of risk of a component or discrete 
activity under an award.  This process is intended to address the Medium Risk 
activities. 

 

 

 
 

Year 1 
EMR 

Submitted

Year 2 
EMR 

Submitted

Year 3 
EMR 

Submitted

Project Timeline 

Draft 
EMR 

Submitted Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Initial 
EMR 

Approved 

Discrete Activity Classification 

Low-Risk  Med-Risk High-Risk 

No EMR EMR required No funding w/o EA  
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